## University Academic Curriculum Vitae

### Rafael Peñaloza Nyssen

### February 2nd, 2021

#### Contents

1	Personal Information	1
2	Education Since Leaving School	1
3	Employment and Appointments Held 3.1 Present Appointment	2 2 2
4	Prizes and Awards 4.1 Career Awards	<b>3</b> 3
5	Experience in Academic Teaching 5.1 Courses Given in the Last 5 Years 5.2 Supervision and Evaluation of Theses 5.2.1 Supervision of PhD Theses 5.2.2 Evaluation of PhD Theses 5.2.3 Supervision of Master Theses 5.2.4 Supervision of Bachelor Theses 5.2.5 Supervision of Research Projects	44 45 55 55 66 66
6	Other Academic Responsibilities         6.1 Institutional Responsibilities          6.2 Organizational Responsibilities          6.3 Additional Responsibilities and Third Mission	7 7 7 8
7	Memberships and Review Activity7.1Membership to Scientific Associations7.2Membership to Editorial Boards7.3PC Membership at International Conferences and Workshops7.3.1Senior PC Membership7.3.2PC Membership7.4Review Activity	9 9 9 9 9 12
8	Research and Scholarships  8.1 Research Impact	13 14 14 14
9	Publications	15

10 Publications About the Applicant	15
11 Further Data	15
11.1 Invited Talks and Keynotes	15
11.2 Presentations at International Conferences and Workshops	16
11.3 Seminars and Tutorials	19
11.4 Industry Talks and Talks to the General Audience	19
11.5 Invitations at international events	20
11.6 Main Research Collaborations	20
12 Language Competences	20

### University Academic Curriculum Vitae

## Personal Information

#### 1 Personal Information

Name: Rafael Peñaloza Nyssen

Place and date of birth: Mexico City (Mexico), 05/07/1981

Nationality: Mexican

Address: DISCO-UNIMIB

U14, Piano: P02, Stanza: 2054

Viale Sarca, 336 - 20126 MILANO, Italy

Telephone numbers: Office +39-0264487834
Email: rafael.penaloza@unimib.it
Web: https://rpenalozan.github.io

Marital status: Married, 1 son

Languages: Spanish Native speaker

English C1 level (IELTS Academic 7.5)

ItalianC1 levelGermanB2 level

# Education Since Leaving School

#### 2 Education Since Leaving School

1999 - 2003

Bachelor Degree in Applied Mathematics, obtained on December 5, 2003 at the *Instituto Tecnológico Autónomo de México* (ITAM). BSc thesis title: *Knowledge-based Systems, Probabilistic Networks, and KAMET* (supervisors: Prof. Osvaldo Cairó and Prof. Alberto Tubilla Estefan). Final mark 9.31/10 honourary mention (A equivalent).

2003 - 2005

Masters Degree in Computational Logic, obtained on March 15, 2006 at the Faculty of Computer Science, Technische Universität Dresden. MSc thesis title: Optimization of Emptiness Test of Büchi Automata on Infinite Trees (supervisor: Prof. Franz Baader). Final mark: 1.0 with distinction (A+ equivalent).

2006 - 2009

**Doctoral Degree (Dr. rer. nat.) in Computer Science**, obtained on August 14, 2009 at the *Technische Universität Dresden*. PhD thesis title: *Axiom-Pinpointing in Description Logics and Beyond* (supervisor: Prof. Franz Baader). Awarded with summa cum laude.

22/10/2015

German Scientific Habilitation in Computer Science, obtained at the Faculty of Computer Science, Technische Universität Dresden. Habilitation thesis title: Reasoning with Annotated Description Logic Ontologies.

04/04/2017

Italian Associate Professorship Habilitation in Computer Engineering. Scientific sector: 09/H1 (Sistemi di Elaborazione delle Informazioni).

10/04/2017

Italian Associate Professorship Habilitation in Computer Science. Scientific sector: 01/B1 (Informatica).

09/09/2019

Italian Full Professorship Habilitation in Computer Engineering. Scientific sector: 09/H1 (Sistemi di Elaborazione delle Informazioni).

11/09/2019

Italian Full Professorship Habilitation in Computer Science. Scientific sector: 01/B1 (Informatica).

#### 3 Employment and Appointments Held

#### Present Appointment

#### 3.1 Present Appointment

From 01/03/2019

Associate Professor at the Department of Informatics, Systems and Communication, *University of Milano-Bicocca* (UNIMIB). Scientific Sector: *INF/01* (*Informatica*).

Responsibilities: Research and teaching activity focused on *knowledge representation* and reasoning. Coordination of and participation to European and local research projects. Student supervision. Administrative duties at the faculty level. Management committee member for the Bachelor in Artificial Intelligence

#### Professional Experience

#### 3.2 Professional Experience

Dec. 2002 - Nov. 2003

**Researcher** for the *Knowledge Acquisition Methodoloy Project* (KAMET), funded by CONACYT.<sup>1</sup>

Responsibilities: Research activities focused on extending the knowledge acquisition methodology KAMET and its related tools to handle uncertainty. Implementation of prototypes showcasing the results.

Dec. 2003 - Sep. 2004

**Analyst** at Inffinix Software, a Mexican company developing software applications for managing

nancial and user data.

Responsibilities: Development of database applications for managing

nancial and user data. Head developer for various automated detection and warning methods for

nancial services. Project manager for a new application focused on providing services to large schools.

Oct. 2008 - Dec. 2008

Scientific Researcher working for the project *TONES*, funded by the European Union

Responsibilities: Research activities focused on the development of non-standard reasoning techniques for expressive ontologies. Help in the preparation of the final project reports.

Jan. 2009 - Mar. 2015

**Scientific Researcher** at the Faculty of Computer Science of the *Technische Universität Dresden*.

Responsibilities: Research and teaching activities focused on the theoretical aspects of knowledge representation and reasoning. The particular focus was dealing with errors, vagueness, and uncertainty in knowledge. Supervision of Master's theses, and of student research projects. Application, coordination, and management of a research project financed by the German Research Foundation (DFG). Organization of local

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>CONACYT is the Mexican Council for Science and Technology

events. Various administrative duties at the faculty level. Participation in internal, national, and international projects.

Nov. 2011 - Mar. 2015

Associated Member at Center for Advancing Electronics, Dresden (cfAED), a multi-disciplinary cluster of excellence funded by the German Research Foundation (DFG), the German Federal Government, and the Regional Government of Saxony. Responsibilities: Coordination, and help in the application of the project, from its initial phases. Coordination of the sub-projects in which the chair for Automata Theory was involved, including overview of two post-docs hired for the project. Organisation and submission of progress reports. Research in multi-disciplinary topics, in collaboration with the MPI for cell biology, and the faculties of Electrical Engineering, and Mathematics.

Apr. 2015 - Feb. 2019

Researcher with a fixed-term contract (*RTD Junior*) at the Faculty of Computer Science, *Free University of Bozen-Bolzano* (UNIBZ). Scientific Sector: *INF/01* (*Informatica*).

Responsibilities: Research and teaching activities focused on knowledge representation and reasoning, in particular dealing with knowledge arising from different sources. Coordination of local research projects. Participation in international projects. Student supervision. Various administrative duties at the faculty level.

#### 4 Prizes and Awards

I have received national prizes and best paper awards in recognition of the importance and impact of my research.

#### 4.1 Career Awards

Apr. 23, 2010

Recipient of the SAP Best Dissertation Award, awarded by the SAP Research Center Dresden to the best Doctoral Thesis from the Faculty of Computer Science at the Technische Universität Dresden in 2009.

Aug. 2010

**Finalist** for the **Best Dissertation Award**, awarded by the German Society of Informatics (Gesellschaft für Informatik) to the best German Doctoral Thesis on Computer Science from 2009.

#### 4.2 Other Mentions

- Finalist for the Best Paper Award at the 30th German Conference on Artificial Intelligence (KI'07), Osnabrück (Germany), September 2007, for the paper Pinpointing in the Description Logic EL+.
- Runner-up for the Best Paper Award at the 6th International Conference on Web Reasoning and Rule Systems (RR'12), Vienna (Austria), September 2012, for the paper A Tableau Algorithm for Fuzzy Description Logics over Residuated De Morgan Lattices.
- Shortlisted for the Best Paper Award at the 14th Extended Semantic Web Conference (ESWC 17), Portoroz (Slovenia), June 2017, for the paper Lean Kernels in Description Logics.

# Experience in Academic Teaching

#### 5 Experience in Academic Teaching

I have always liked to teach. My first teaching experience came during my second year of Bachelor, where I helped as a trainer for middle-school students that attended the Mathematics Olympics. During my Bachelor and Masters studies, I volunteered time as an assistant in recovery courses for students having trouble passing their logic and programming courses. As soon as I was allowed to teach at the Technische Universität Dresden, I took the opportunity; first as a teaching assistant, and later as lecturer. I have also given tutorials at the University of Calabria, in Cosenza, at Summer Schools, and at other international events. My lectures have covered a wide range of topics, from mathematical foundations to specialized topics in AI. I always consult several sources for preparing each lecture, and keep the material up to date. For me it is fundamental to continuously adapt and improve the lecture notes and slides, and to take into account the medium; an in-person lecture cannot be the same as a telematic one. When deciding the depth, technicality, and scope of my lectures, I always take into account the intended audience and their background, attempting to provide them with the most meaningful content. My passion for teaching is also reflected in my scientific talks, which I curate carefully.

#### 5.1 Courses Given in the Last 5 Years

#### A.Y. 2016/2017

**Lecturer** of *Advanced Logic* (8ECTS), Erasmus Mundus European Master in Computational Logic, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

#### A.Y. 2017/2018

**Lecturer** of *Empirical Methods* (8ECTS), Bachelor in Computer Science, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

**Lecturer** of *Probability Theory and Statistics* (8ECTS), Bachelor in Computer Science, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

#### A.Y. 2018/2019

**Lecturer** of *Probability Theory and Statistics* (8ECTS), Bachelor in Computer Science, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

**Laboratory** in *Architettura degli Elaboratori* (36 hours), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Exercises** in *Programmazione 2* (24 hours), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Lecturer** of Fuzzy Logics for Knowledge Representation (2 hours), Summer School on Advances in AI

#### A.Y. 2019/2020

Lecturer of Fondamenti dell'Informatica (16 hours lecture, 20 hours exercises), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Lecturer** of *Linguaggi di Programmazione* (16 hours lecture, 30 hours laboratory), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Laboratory** in *Programmazione 1* (60 hours), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Lecturer** of *Razonamiento Probabilístico con Ontologías* (4 hours), International Spring School on Uncertainty in AI and Data Management (UAI@UAI), in Spanish

**Lecturer** of *Introduction to Probabilistic Ontologies* (3 hours), Reasoning Web Summer School

Lecturer of Introduction to Probabilistic Ontologies (3 hours), CILC

#### A.Y. 2020/2021

Lecturer of Fondamenti dell'Informatica (16 hours lecture, 20 hours exercises), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Lecturer** of *Linguaggi di Programmazione* (16 hours lecture, 30 hours laboratory), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

**Laboratory** in *Programmazione 1* (60 hours), Bachelor in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca.

#### 5.2 Supervision and Evaluation of Theses

I strongly support collaborative research, and I particularly enjoy working with students and young researchers. Most of the work I have supervised has resulted in publications at internationally renowned venues.

#### 5.2.1 Supervision of PhD Theses

Due to regulations in Germany, during my time in Dresden I was unable to officially supervise PhD theses. Only professors are allowed to do so. However, I worked closely with several PhD students during that time; mainly with Martin Knechtel, Stefan Borgwardt, and İsmail İlkan Ceylan giving them advice and producing joint research papers.

Since Nov. 2019

Co-supervisor of Paolo Tenti on the topic knowledge-aware embeddings.

#### 5.2.2 Evaluation of PhD Theses

- 2012 External reviewer and member of the examination panel for the defense of the PhD Thesis Fuzzy Description Logics from a Mathematical Fuzzy Logic point of view, by Marco Cerami, Universitat de Barcelona, Spain.
- 2017 External reviewer and member of the examination panel for the defense of the PhD Thesis General Terminology Induction in Description Logics, by Viachaslau Sazonau, University of Manchester, UK.
- 2020 External reviewer and member of the examination panel for the defense of the PhD Thesis *Modularity in Belief Change of Description Logic Bases*, by Ricardo Ferreira Guimarães, University of São Paulo, Brazil
  - Member of the examination panel for the defense of the PhD Thesis Neural Networks Enhancement through Prior Logical Knowledge, by Alessandro Daniele, Università degli Studi di Firenze, Italy
- 2021 External reviewer and member of the examination panel for the defense of the PhD Thesis Explanations for Ontology-Mediated Query Answers, by Andrius Vaicenavičius, University of Oxford, UK.
  - External reviewer for the PhD Thesis Large-scale ontology-mediated query answering over OWL 2 RL ontologies, by Alessio Fiorentino, University of Calabria, Italy

#### 5.2.3 Supervision of Master Theses

- 2007 Supervisor of the MSc thesis by Muhammad Tayyab, European Master in Computational Logic, on Analysis of Pinpointing Algorithms for the Description Logic ALC.
- 2010 Supervisor of the MSc thesis by Mahfuza Farooque, European Master in Computational Logic, on A Study on Satis ability in Fuzzy Description Logics.

- Supervisor of the Diploma thesis by Stefan Borgwardt, Diplom in Computer Science,<sup>2</sup> on *The Infimum Problem as a Generalization of the Inclusion Problem for Automata*. The thesis received the **N.J. Lehmann Award for the best Diploma Thesis in Computer Science and Mathematics**.
- 2011 Supervisor of the MSc thesis by Eldora, European Master in Computational Logic, on Correcting Access Restrictions: a Range-based Approach.
  - Supervisor of the MSc thesis by Weili Fu, European Master in Computational Logic, on Labeling-extensions of General Tableaux with Many Values.
- 2013 **Supervisor** of the MSc thesis by Wenqian Wang, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Error-Tolerant Direct Bases*.
  - Supervisor of the MSc thesis by José A. Leyva Galano, European Master in Computational Logic, on *The Subsumption Problem for Fuzzy FL0 with Greatest Fixed-point Semantics*.
  - **Supervisor** of the MSc thesis by İsmail İlkan Ceylan, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Context-Sensitive Bayesian Description Logics*.
- 2015 Supervisor of the MSc thesis by T. Aparna Saisree, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Iterative Ontology Update with Minimum Change*.
- 5.2.4 Supervision of Bachelor Theses
- 2010 Supervisor of the Großer Beleg<sup>3</sup> by Stefan Borgwardt, Diplom in Computer Science, on Computing Infimum and Supremum of the Behaviour of Weighted Büchi Automata on Labeled Trees.
- 2011 Supervisor of the Großer Beleg by Karsten Lehmann, Diplom in Computer Science, on On One-Letter Weighted Buechi Tree Automata.
- 5.2.5 Supervision of Research Projects
- 2010 Supervisor of the Master's Research Project by Eldora, European Master in Computational Logic, on Comparing Ordering Strategies for Boundary Computation.
  - Supervisor of the Master's Research Project by Evgeny Sherkhonov, European Master in Computational Logic, on On Polynomial Representation of the Least Common Subsumer in  $\mathcal{EL}$ .
  - **Supervisor** of the Master's Research Project by Weili Fu, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Review of Laconic and Precise Justifications in OWL*.
- 2011 Supervisor of the Master's Research Project by José A. Leyva Galano, European Master in Computational Logic, on Four Simple-Path Problems in Digraphs and Their Complexity.
- 2012 Supervisor of the Master's Research Project by Wenqian Wang, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Towards a Completion Algorithm for Fuzzy EL*.
  - **Supervisor** of the Komplexpraktikum by Dorian Merz, Diplom in Computer Science, on *Boundaries in Labelled Ontologies Uniqueness and Inner Structure*.
- 2013 Supervisor of the Masterspraktikum by Raphael Urmoneit, Masters in Computer Science, on *Finding Best Explanations*.

 $<sup>^2\</sup>mathrm{Diplom}$  is a 5-year study course equivalent to a Masters degree

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>In the Diplom programme, the Großer Beleg is a thesis written after 3 years of study, giving an equivalence to the Bachelor degree.

- **Supervisor** of the Masters Research Project by İsmail İlkan Ceylan, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Bayesian EL: BEL*.
- 2014 Supervisor of the Masters Research Project by T. Aparna Saisree, European Master in Computational Logic, on Context Labeling and Context-based Reasoning on Semantic Web Ontologies.
  - Supervisor of the Masters Research Project by Stathis Delivorias, European Master in Computational Logic, on *Modelling Cellular Automata with Temporal Description Logic*.
  - **Supervisor** of the Scientific Project by Lisa Hutschenreiter, Diplom in Computer Science, on *Ground Tableaux and Automata*.
- 2019 Supervisor of the Masters Research Project by Cosimo Damiano Persia, European Master in Computational Logic, on *TBox Repairing*.

#### Other Academic Responsibilities

#### 6 Other Academic Responsibilities

I am involved in the organization of top-tier international conferences and other events. I actively participate to the life of the department.

#### 6.1 Institutional Responsibilities

Nov. 2011 - Mar. 2015

Coordinator of the research group on knowledge representation within the Cluster of Excellence "Center for Advancing Electronics Dresden."

Nov. 2015 - Feb. 2019

Member of the PhD Committee in Computer Science, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

Nov. 2020 - Now

Member of the PhD Committee in Computer Science, University of Milano-Bicocca

Jan. 2021 - Now

Member of the Management Committee for the Bachelor in Artificial Intelligence, University of Milano-Bicocca

#### 6.2 Organizational Responsibilities

- 2010 Co-chair and organizer of the First International Workshop on Uncertainty in Description Logics (UniDL-10), Edinburgh, UK.
- 2014 Co-chair and organizer of the First International Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty and Vagueness (PRUV 2014), Vienna, Austria.
- 2015 **Doctoral Consortium Chair** of the 38th German Conference on Arti cial Intelligence (KI 2015), Dresden, Germany.
- 2016 Co-chair of the 29th International Workshop of Description Logics (DL 2016), Cape Town, South Africa.
  - Doctoral Consortium Chair of the 10th International Conference on Web Reasoning and Rule Systems (RR 2016), Aberdeen, UK.
  - Track Co-chair for the Semantic Web and Conceptual Modelling Track of the 18th IEEE Conference on Business informatics (CBI 2016), Paris, France.

- 2017 Track Co-chair for the Novel Approaches to Ontological Reasoning Track of the 30th International Conference on Industrial, Engineering and Other Applications of Applied Intelligent Systems, Arras, France.
  - Co-chair and organizer of the Debugging and Evaluation Workshop (DEW@JOWO), Bozen-Bolzano, Italy.
- 2018 Co-chair and organizer of the Second International Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty and Vagueness (PRUV 2018), Oxford, UK
  - Co-chair and organizer of the Bad Ontology Workshop (BOG@JOWO), Cape Town, South Africa
- 2019 Co-chair and organizer of the Bad or Good Ontology Workshop (BOG@JOWO), Graz, Austria
  - Workshops and Tutorials Chair of the 18th International Conference of the Italian Association for Artificial Intelligence (AIxIA 19)
  - Track Co-chair for the Knowledge Representation and Reasoning Track of the 19th EPIA Conference on Artificial Intelligence (EPIA-19)
- 2020 Workshop Co-chair of the 19th International Conference of the Italian Association for Artificial Intelligence (AIxIA 20)
  - Local Organizer of the 14th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM-2020)
  - Track Co-chair for the Knowledge Representation and Reasoning Track of the 20th EPIA Conference on Artificial Intelligence (EPIA-20)
  - General Co-chair of the 22nd International Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Knowledge Management (EKAW-20)
- 2021 Co-chair of the 5th International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning (RuleML+RR 21)

#### 6.3 Additional Responsibilities and Third Mission

From 2016

Member of the editorial board of Intelligenza Artificiale

2016 - 2019

Member of the steering committee of the Description Logic Workshop

2016 - 2019

Series of talks given to industry representatives on Conceptual Modeling, for industries based in the Province of Bozen-Bolzano

From 2019

Member of the editorial board of the Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research

From 2021

Editor-in-Chief of AI Communications

#### 7 Memberships and Review Activity

I am member of national and international associations, and I am constantly invited to be part of the program committee of top-tier international conferences and national events, as well as to act as a reviewer for world-class international journals and books.

#### 7.1 Membership to Scientific Associations

- Associazione Italiana per l'Intelligenza Artificiale (AI\*IA).
- The International Association for Ontology and its Applications (IAOA).

#### 7.2 Membership to Editorial Boards

Since 03/2016

Member of the Editorial Board for Intelligenza Artificiale.

Since 06/2019

Member of the Editorial Board for Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research.

Since 01/2021

Editor-in-Chief for AI Communications.

#### 7.3 PC Membership at International Conferences and Workshops

- 7.3.1 Senior PC Membership
- 2013 27th AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence (AAAI-13)
- 2019 28th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI-19)
- 2020 29th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI-PRICAI-20)
- 2021 30th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI-21)
  - 18th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR-21) (Area Chair)
- 7.3.2 PC Membership
- 2011 7th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2011)
  - 22nd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI'11)
  - 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011)
- 2012 First International Workshop on Debugging Ontologies and Ontology Mappings (WoDOOM 2012)
  - 8th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2012)
  - 6th International Conference on Web Reasoning and Rule Systems (RR 2012)
  - 9th Extended Semantic Web Conference (ESWC 2012)
  - 25th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2012)
  - 4th International Workshop on Acquisition, Representation and Reasoning with Contextualized Knowledge (ARCOE'12)
  - AI on the Web Workshop 2012
- 2013 26th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2013)
  - Second International Workshop on Debugging Ontologies and Ontology Mappings (WoDOOM 2013)
  - 9th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2013)
  - 15th Conference of the Spanish Association for Artificial Intelligence (CAEPIA 2013)
  - 4th Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Sematic Web (KESW 2013)

- 5th International Workshop on Acquisition, Representation and Reasoning with Contextualized Knowledge (ARCOE'13)
- 2014 8th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2014)
  - 5th Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Sematic Web (KESW 2014)
  - 27th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2014)
  - Third International Workshop on Debugging Ontologies and Ontology Mappings (WoDOOM 2014)
  - 11th Extended Semantic Web Conference (ESWC 2014)
  - 14th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2014)
  - 6th International Workshop on Acquisition, Representation and Reasoning with Contextualized Knowledge (ARCOE'14)
  - 10th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2014)
- 2015 24th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI'15)
  - 11th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2015)
  - 6th Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Sematic Web (KESW 2015)
  - First Joint Ontology Workshop (JOWO 2015)
  - 16th Conference of the Spanish Association for Artificial Intelligence (CAEPIA 2015)
  - 4th International Workshop on Debugging Ontologies and Ontology Mappings (WoDOOM 2015)
- 2016 12th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2016)
  - 15th International Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ISWC 2016 P&D)
  - 15th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2016)
  - 25th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI'16)
  - International Workshop on Ontology Modularity, Contextuality, and Evolution (WOMoCoE 2016)
  - Tenth International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2016)
  - 7th Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Sematic Web (KESW 2016)
  - First International Workshop on Completing and Debugging the Semantic Web (CoDeS'16)
  - V Congreso Español de Informática (CEDI 2016)
  - 22nd European Conference on Artificial Intelligence (ECAI 2016)
- 2017 30th International FLAIRS Conference
  - 30th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2017)
  - 2nd Workshop on Cognition and Ontologies (CAOS 2017)
  - 14th Extended Semantic Web Conference (ESWC 2017)
  - 26th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI'17)
  - 8th Conference on Knowledge Engineering and Sematic Web (KESW 2017)
  - First International Workshop on Generalizing knowledge: from Machine Learning and Knowledge Representation to the Semantic Web (GenSW2017)
  - 1st International Workshop on Epistemology in Ontologies (EPINON)
  - 16th International Semantic Web Conference (ISWC 2017)

- 16th International Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ISWC 2017 P&D)
- 14th Extended Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ESWC 2017 P&D)
- Comprehensibility and Explanation in AI and ML (CEx 2017)
- Workshop on Managing Changes in the Semantic Web (MaCSeW2017)
- 11th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2017)
- International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning RuleML+RR 2017 Doctoral Consortium
- 2018 The Bad Ontology Workshop (BOG@JOWO) [PC Chair]
  - 12th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2018)
  - 15th Extended Semantic Web Conference (ESWC 2018)
  - 16th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2018)
  - Seminar on Ontology Research in Brazil (ONTOBRAS 2018)
  - 33rd Italian Conference on Computational Logic (CILC 2018)
  - 3rd International Workshop on Ontology Modularity, Contextuality, and Evolution (WOMoCoE 2018)
  - 15th Extended Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ESWC 2018 P&D)
  - 31st International FLAIRS Conference
  - 27th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI'18)
  - 32nd AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence (AAAI'18)
- 2019 16th European Conference on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA'19)
  - 33rd AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence (AAAI'19)
  - 4th International Workshop on Ontology Modularity, Contextuality, and Evolution (WOMoCoE 2019)
  - 1st Workshop on Data meets Applied Ontologies in Open Science and Innovation (DAO-SI)
  - XII Seminar on Ontology Research in Brazil (ONTOBRAS 19)
  - 32nd International FLAIRS Conference
  - 42nd German Conference on AI (KI-19)
  - 16th Extended Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ESWC 2019 P&D)
  - 15th European Conference on Symbolic and Quantitative Approaches to Reasoning with Uncertainty (ECSQARU-19)
  - 13th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2019)
  - 18th International Semantic Web Conference (ISWC 2019)
  - 18th International Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ISWC 2019 P&D)
  - International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning RuleML+RR 2019
  - 32nd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2019)
- 2020 33rd International FLAIRS Conference
  - 24th European Conference on Artificial Intelligence (ECAI 2020)
  - 19th International Conference of the Italian Association for Artificial Intelligence (AIxIA-20)
  - XIII Seminar on Ontology Research in Brazil (ONTOBRAS 20)
  - $\bullet$ 5th International Workshop on Ontology Modularity, Contextuality, and Evolution (WOMoCoE 2020)
  - Workshop on Explainable Logic-based Knowledge Representation

- International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning RuleML+RR 2020
- 33rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2020)
- 19th International Semantic Web Conference (ISWC 2020)
- 19th International Semantic Web Conference Posters and Demos (ISWC 2020 P&D)
- 19th International Semantic Web Conference Resources (ISWC 2020 Resources)
- 35th Italian Conference on Computational Logic (CILC 2020)
- 2021 34th International FLAIRS Conference
  - 34th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2021)
  - 17th European Conference on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA'21)

#### 7.4 Review Activity

Reviewer for the following international journals:

- ACM Transactions on Computational Logic (ACM TOCL),
- AI-Communications (AIC),
- Advances in Artificial Intelligence (AAIJ),
- Annals of Mathematics and Artificial Intelligence (AMAI),
- Artificial Intelligence Journal (AIJ),
- Data & Knowledge Engineering (DKE),
- Frontiers of Information Technology & Electronic Engineering
- Fondamenta Informaticae (FI)
- Fuzzy Sets and Systems (FSS),
- Information Processing Letters (IPL),
- Information Systems (IS),
- International Journal on Approximate Reasoning (IJAR),
- International Journal on Semantic Web and Information Systems (IJSWIS),
- Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research (JAIR),
- Journal on Automated Reasoning (JAR),
- Journal of Autonomous Agents and Multi-Agent Systems (JAAMAS),
- Journal of Computers (JCP),
- Journal of Logics and Computation (JLC),
- Journal on Web Semantics (JWS),
- Knowledge and Information Systems (KAIS),
- Knowledge-based Systems (KnoSys),
- Künstliche Intelligenz (KI),
- Logical Methods in Computer Science (LMCS),
- Reviews of Symbolic Logic (RSL),
- Semantic Web Journal (SWJ),
- Theory and Practice of Logic Programming (TPLP).

Reviewer for the following international conferences and workshops:

Int. Conf. of the Italian Association for Artificial Intelligence (AI\*IA), Int. Joint Conf. on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI), Int. Joint Conf. on Automated Reasoning (IJCAR), AAAI Conf. on Artificial Intelligence (AAAI), ACM Symp. on Principles of Database Systems (PODS), Int. Conf. on Database Theory (ICDT), European Conf. on Artificial Intelligence (ECAI), European Conf. on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA), Int. Conf. on Automated Deduction (CADE), Reasoning Web Summer School (RW), Int. Conf. on Logic Programming, Artificial Intelligence, and Reasoning (LPAR), Logical Foundations of Computer Science (LFCS), Global Conf. on Artificial Intelligence (GCAI).

Reviewer for chapters in three volumes of Springer's Lecture Notes in Computer Science dedicated to uncertainty reasoning for the Semantic Web.

Reviewer for a book published by CRC Press.

Reviewer for chapters on specialized books by CRC Press and Springer.

Reviewer for the American Mathematical Society's Mathematical Reviews.

## Research and Scholarships

#### 8 Research and Scholarships

My main research interests fall into the scope of knowledge representation and automated reasoning as a whole, with an emphasis on the theoretical foundations of logic-based knowledge representation languages. In particular, I consider the problem of representing and dealing with incomplete and imperfect knowledge in a precise and unambiguous manner. My interest focuses on being able to automatically reason with the vast amount of knowledge currently available online, or expressed through human (ambiguous) languages.

To achieve these goals, I study several different extensions of classical knowledge representation languages, and novel reasoning services for them. For the former, I consider approaches for dealing with uncertainty (probabilities), vagueness (rough theory), imprecision (fuzzy logic), and preferences (possibilistic logic and total orderings). As novel reasoning services, I mainly focus on methods for understanding the causes for a potentially incorrect piece of information to be derived from a knowledge base, and correcting it if necessary; in addition, I consider new semantics for extracting meaningful information from inconsistent knowledge. Other important problems that I have considered are extracting concepts describing a class of data points, and generalising concepts.

Most of my work is based on understanding and generalising ideas developed in one area, to apply them in another area. For that reason, most of my work considers arbitrary logic-based formalisms as a base, which are then instantiated to Description Logics, a well-known family of knowledge representation languages, as an example application. For that reason, my research has had impact in other communities, with which I continuously collaborate. Being able to communicate with members of other fields has been fundamental for the success of my work.

Although the core of my earlier work was mainly theoretical, in recent years I have also considered the practical aspects of my research. This branch of my work has also provided successful results; the tools implemented with my collaborators are currently among the most efficient available for non-standard reasoning. Moreover, these implementations have helped to verify several of the theoretical complexity results that were previously developed, and motivate new research questions to follow.

I carry my research in collaboration with an extensive network of well-known researchers (see Section 11.6). Currently, I am starting collaborations with members of the University of Milano-Bicocca.

In summary, my research interests are:

- artificial intelligence
- knowledge representation and reasoning
- knowledge acquisition and extraction
- computational logics (temporal/description logics)
- reasoning with uncertainty (probabilistic models, Bayesian networks)
- reasoning about imprecision and vagueness
- conceptual modelling, ontologies, databases

#### 8.1 Research Impact

My scientific output is highly relevant to my community, as witnessed by the high quality (and very competitive) venues in which my research results have been published, by the wide recognition of my research track by the scientific community (see Sections 4 and 11.1), and by the bibliometric indices related to my publication record.

I have co-authored more than 140 peer-reviewed scientific publications, published in world-class referred international journals such as Artificial Intelligence, Journal of Automated Reasoning, Information and Computation, Journal of Web Semantics, and Theory and Practice of Logic Programming; as well as prestigious and highly selective conferences such as IJCAI, KR, AAAI, ECAI, ICLP, ISWC, and ESWC.

According to *Google Scholar*, as of February 3rd, 2021:

- my papers have received **2211 overall citations** (1165 since 2016);
- I have have an  $\mathbf{h}$ -index<sup>4</sup> of 25 (17 since 2016);
- I have an **i-10 index**<sup>5</sup> of **65** (43 since 2016).

According to *Scopus*, as of February 3rd, 2021:

- my papers have received **1250 overall citations**;
- I have have an **h-index of 20**.

#### 8.2 Scholarships

2006 • 30-month scholarship for a PhD in Computer Science at the University of Leipzig, Germany, nanced by the German Research Foundation (DFG) as part of the Graduate School on Knowledge Representation

#### 8.3 Research Grants and Projects

Oct. 2008 - Dec. 2008

Team Member for the EU FET Project IST-2005-7603 Thinking Ontologies (TONES). The goal of the project was to study and develop automated reasoning techniques for engineering of and operation with ontologies, and devise methodologies for the deployment of such techniques in advanced tools and applications. The project was coordinated by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano. The other partners were Sapienza Universitá di Roma, Italy; The University of Manchester, UK; Technische Universität Dresden, Germany; and Technische Universität Hamburg-Harburg, Germany. The project got a very positive evaluation at its termination.

May 2012 – June 2016

**Principal co-Investigator** for the German Research Foundation (DFG) Project BA 1122/17-1 Reasoning in Fuzzy Description Logics with General Concept Inclusion Axioms (FuzzyDL). The goal of the project was to understand the complexity of reasoning in different fuzzy extensions of description logics, and develop effective reasoning methods. The project was funded with €174 600.

 $<sup>^4</sup>$ A researcher has a value of the Hirsch-index (or h-index) equal to h if h of their publications have at least h citations each, while the remaining publications have not more than h citations each. The h-index measures the cumulative impact of the scientific production of a researcher, evaluated by means of the number of citations that their work has obtained.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>The i10-index is the number of publications with at least 10 citations.

Nov. 2012 – Mar. 2015

Group Coordinator for the DFG Cluster of Excellence Center for Advancing Electronics Dresden (cfAED). Within this cluster, I was in charge of coordinating the two projects led by the Chair of Automata Theory: Error-Tolerant Reasoning (part of the Resilience Path), and Logical Analysis of Biological Systems (part of the Biological Systems Path).

Nov. 2016 - Feb. 2019

Principal investigator for the UNIBZ Project ORBE: Expressive Bayesian Ontological Reasoning. The main goal of ORBE was to develop efficient reasoning techniques for dealing with uncertain knowledge. A particular focus was given to probabilistic knowledge expressed through a combination of an (expressive) description logic, and a Bayesian network. This project was funded with €70 000 by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

Nov. 2017 - Feb. 2019

**Principal investigator** for the UNIBZ Project FO2S: From Ontologies to SAT. The main goal of FO2S was to exploit the very efficient tools developed by the SAT community (with specialized data types and novel optimizations) to improve ontological reasoning as a whole. This project is funded with €100 000 by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano.

#### Publications

#### 9 Publications

The full list of peer-reviewed publications during the last 10 years is provided at the end of the CV.

# Publications About the Applicant

#### 10 Publications About the Applicant

In the press:

- Wie stelle ich Wissen umfassend dar? (Dolomiten, Sep. 16, 2015).
- Ein Geiger ist ein Musiker (Academia 71, Oct. 2015).

#### Further Data

#### 11 Further Data

I enjoy presenting the results of my research activity. I often disseminate my research through invited talks, presentations at top-tier international conferences and workshops, seminars, and tutorials, as well as through high-level speeches tailored to the industry and to the general audience. I also actively enhance in the dissemination of scientific knowledge through social media. I particularly write brief articles for scientific dissemination in Spanish.

#### 11.1 Invited Talks and Keynotes

Feb. 21, 2014

Invited talk at the 35th Linz Seminar on Fuzzy Set Theory, Linz (Austria). Title: Automata-based Reasoning in Fuzzy Description Logics.

Dec. 11, 2015

Invited talk at ManyVal 2015, Les Diablerets (Switzerland). Title: Feeding Many Values to Light-weight Description Logics.

Nov. 3, 2016

Invited talk at the 25émes Rencontres Francophones sur la Logique Floue et ses Applications, La Rochelle (France). Title: *The Status of Fuzzy Description Logic Reasoning*.

#### 11.2 Presentations at International Conferences and Workshops

- 06-11-2003 Presentation at the 23rd International Conference of the Chilean Computer Science Society (SCCC 2003), Chillan (Chile). Title: *Using Bayesian Networks as an Inference Engine in KAMET*.
- 13-11-2003 Presentation at the X Conference of the Spanish Society of Artificial Intelligence (CAEPIA-03), Donostia-San Sebastian (Spain). Title: Creating a Bayesian inference engine for KAMET.
- 09-06-2007 Presentation at the 2007 International Workshop on Description Logics (DL2007), Brixen-Bressanone (Italy). Title: *Pinpointing in the Description Logic EL*.
- 03-07-2007 Presentation at the 16th International Conference on Automated Reasoning with Analytic Tableaux and Related Methods (TABLEAUX 2007), Aix en Provence (France). Title: Axiom Pinpointing in General Tableaux.
- 11-09-2007 Presentation at the 30th Annual German Conference on AI (KI 2007), Osnabrück (Germany) Title: Pinpointing in the Description Logic EL+.
- 16-05-2008 Presentation at the 21st International Workshop on Description Logics (DL2008), Dresden(Germany). Title: Automata-based Pinpointing for DLs.
- 14-08-2008 Presentation at the 4th International Joint Conference on Automated Reasoning (IJCAR 2008), Sydney (Australia). Title: Automata-Based Axiom Pinpointing.
- 06-07-2009 Presentation at the TABLEAUX 2009 Wokshop on Tableaux versus Automata as Logical Decision Methods (AutoTab?09), Oslo (Norway). Title: *Using Tableaux and Automata for Pinpointing in EL*
- 27-07-2009 Presentation at the 22nd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2009), Oxford (UK). Title: Reasoning With Weighted Ontologies
- 28-07-2009 Presentation at the 22nd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2009), Oxford (UK). Title:  $Axiom\ Pinpointing\ is\ Hard$
- 05-05-2010 Presentation at the 23rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2010), Waterloo (Canada). Title: Correcting Access Restrictions to a Consequence.
- 07-05-2010 Presentation at the 23rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2010), Waterloo (Canada). Title: Complexity of Axiom Pinpointing in the DL-Lite Family.
- 11-05-2010 Presentation at the Twelfth International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2010), Toronto, (Canada). Title: On the Complexity of Axiom Pinpointing in the EL Family of Description Logics
- 26-05-2010 Presentation at the 4th International Conference on Language and Automata Theory and Applications (LATA 2010), Trier (Germany). Title: *Using Sums-of-Products for Non-standard Reasoning*
- 20-07-2010 Presentation at the First International Workshop on Uncertainty in Description Logics (UniDL 10), Edinburgh (UK). Title: Towards Approximative Most Specific Concepts by Completion for EL with Subjective Probabilities

- 28-06-2011 Presentation at the 2011 IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems (FUZZ-IEEE 2011), Taipei (Taiwan). Title: Are fuzzy description logics with general concept inclusion axioms decidable?
- 13-07-2011 Presentation at the 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011), Barcelona (Spain). Title: GCIs Make Reasoning in Fuzzy DL with the Product T-norm Undecidable
- 15-07-2011 Presentation at the 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011), Barcelona (Spain). Title: Correcting Access Restrictions to a Consequence More Flexibly
- 20-07-2011 Presentation at the 22nd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI 2011), Barcelona (Spain). Title: Description Logics over Lattices with Multi-Valued Ontologies
- 06-10-2011 Presentation at the 8th International Symposium Frontiers of Combining Systems (FroCoS 2011), Saarbreken (Germany). Title: On the Undecidability of Fuzzy Description Logics with GCIs and Product T-norm
- 23-10-2011 Presentation at the 7th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2011), Bonn (Germany). Title: Finite Lattices Do Not Make Reasoning in ALCI Harder
- 02-06-2012 Presentation at the 6th International Workshop on Weighted Automata: Theory and Applications (WATA 2012), Dresden (Germany). Title: The complexity of computing the behaviour of weighted Büchi automata over lattices
- 08-06-2012 Presentation at the 25th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2012), Rome (Italy). Title: Adding Context to Tableaux for DLs
- 12-06-2012 Presentation at the 13th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2012), Rome (Italy). Title: *Undecidability of Fuzzy Description Logics*
- 10-09-2012 Presentation at the 6th International Conference on Web Reasoning and Rule Systems (RR 2012), Vienna (Austria). Title: A Tableau Algorithm for Fuzzy Description Logics over Residuated De Morgan Lattices
- 24-07-2013 Presentation at the 26th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2013), Ulm (Germany). Title: Rough EL Classification
- 20-09-2013 Presentation at the 9th International Symposium on Frontiers of Combining Systems (FroCoS 2013), Nancy (France). Title: Roughening the EL Envelope
- 12-06-2014 Presentation at the 12th International Conference on Formal Concept Analysis (ICFCA'14) Cluj-Napoca (Romania). Title: Classifying software bug reports using methods from formal concept analysis
- 19-07-2014 Presentation at the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2014), Vienna (Austria). Title: Brave and Cautious Reasoning in EL
- 20-07-2014 Presentation at the 7th International Joint Conference on Automated Reasoning (IJCAR 2014), Vienna (Austria). Title: The Bayesian Description Logic BEL
- 23-07-2014 Presentation at the First Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty, and Vagueness, (PRUV 2014), Vienna (Austria). Title: Manyvalued Horn Logic is Hard
- 24-09-2014 Presentation at the 14th European Conference on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA 2014), Madeira (Portugal). Title: The Fuzzy Description Logic G-FL0 with Greatest Fixed-Point Semantics

- 24-09-2014 Presentation at the 14th European Conference on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA 2014), Madeira (Portugal). Title: Error-Tolerant Reasoning in the Description Logic EL
- 28-07-2015 Presentation at the 24th International Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI 2015), Buenos Aires (Argentina). Title: The Complexity of Subsumption in Fuzzy EL
- 27-07-2015 Presentation at the Workshop on Belief Change and Nonmonotonic Reasoning in Ontologies and Databases (OntoChange), Buenos Aires (Argentina). Title: Iterative Ontology Updates Using Context Labels
- 22-04-2016 Presentation at the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2016). Cape Town (South Africa). Title: Reasoning in Expressive Gödel Description Logics
- 23-04-2016 Presentation at the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2016). Cape Town (South Africa). Title: Efficient Axiom Pinpointing in EL using SAT Technology
- 09-11-2016 Presentation at the 15th European Conference On Logics In Artificial Intelligence (JELIA 2016), Larnaka (Cyprus). Title: Efficient Reasoning for Inconsistent Horn Formulae
- 30-05-2017 Presentation at the 14th International ESWC Conference (ESWC 2017), Portoroz (Slovenia). Title: Lean Kernels in Description Logics
- 28-06-2017 Presentation at the 25th Italian Symposium on Advanced Database Systems (SEBD 2017), Squillace Lido (Italy). Title: A Decidable Very Expressive n-ary Description Logic for Database Applications
- 13-07-2017 Presentation at the 1st International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning (RuleML+RR 2017), London (UK). Title: *Inconsistency-tolerant Instance Checking in Tractable Description Logics*
- 18-07-2017 Presentation at the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2017), Montpellier (France). Title: Debugging EL+ Ontologies through MUS Enumeration
- 18-07-2017 Presentation at the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2017), Montpellier (France). Title: Lukasiewicz Fuzzy EL is Undecidable
- 19-07-2017 Presentation at the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2017), Montpellier (France). Title: Lean Kernels in Description Logics
- 04-10-2018 Presentation at the 12th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2018), Milano (Italy). Title: Consequence-Based Axiom Pinpointing
- 09-05-2019 Presentation at the 16th European Conference on Logics in Artificial Intelligence (JELIA 2019), Cosenza (Italy). Title: A Bayesian Extension of the Description Logic ALC
- 06-09-2019 Presentation at the 16th International Conference on Modeling Decisions for Artificial Intelligence (MDAI-19). Title: *Making Decisions with Knowledge Base Repairs*
- 29-06-2020 Presentation at the 4th International Joint Conference on Rules and Reasoning (RuleML+RR 2020). Title: Query Answering in Fuzzy DL-Lite with Graded Axioms
- 13-09-2020 Presentation at the 33rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2020). Title: Query Answering in Fuzzy DL-Lite with Graded Axioms

15-09-2020 Presentation at the 17th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2020). Title: Towards a Logic of Meta-Analysis

#### 11.3 Seminars and Tutorials

May 10, 2012

Opening QuantLA Research Seminar, Technische Universität Dresden (Germany). Title: Fuzzy DL Nation.

Oct. 15, 2012

Seminar on Non-classical Logics, University of Barcelona (Spain). Title: Finding the Culprits - A True Mystery Tale.

Mar. 25-29, 2013

Tutorial at the Department of Mathematics and Computer Science, Universitá della Calabria (Italy). Title: Introduction to Fuzzy Description Logics. (10 hours).

Feb. 15, 2015

Invited Seminar at the Chair of Polymeric Microsystems, Technische Universität Dresden (Germany). Title: Fuzzy Logic: A Primer.

Jan. 20-29, 2016

Tutorial at the Department of Mathematics and Computer Science, Universitá della Calabria (Italy). Title: Introduction to Fuzzy Description Logics. (10 hours).

Mar. 2, 2017

Lunch Seminar, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano (Italy). Title: We know more than we claim.

May 4, 2017

Invited Seminar at the University of Manchester (UK). Title: The Context-based View on Non-standard Reasoning.

Oct. 5, 2017

Invited tutorial at the 11th International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM 2017). Title: Fuzzy Description Logics. (2 hours).

#### 11.4 Industry Talks and Talks to the General Audience

Sep. 20, 2016

Presentation at the **Look&Touch** event, organized by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano for TTControl Title of the presentation: Description Logics and Ontologies.

Jan. 16, 2017

Presentation at the **Look&Touch** event, organized by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano for GKN Title of the presentation: Conceptual Modelling.

Mar. 13, 2017

Presentation at the **Look&Touch** event, organized by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano for Brennercom Title of the presentation: Conceptual Modelling.

Mar. 28, 2017

Presentation at the **Look&Touch** event, organized by the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano for Systems Srl Title of the presentation: Conceptual Modelling.

Sep. 28, 2019

Presentation at **Meet-me-Tonight**, organized by the University of Milano-Bicocca Title of the presentation: The Knowledge Game.

#### 11.5 Invitations at international events

10/2012 Dagstuhl Seminar 12441 Foundations and Challenges of Change and Evolution in Ontologies.

#### 11.6 Main Research Collaborations

- F. Baader, S. Borgward (Technische Universität Dresden). Topics: Knowledge representation and reasoning, vagueness, Fuzzy Description Logic.
- J. Marques-Silva (University of Lisbon), C. Mencía (University of Oviedo). Topics: Knowledge base debugging, supplemental reasoning problems.
- T. Lukasiewicz, I.I. Ceylan (University of Oxford). Topics: Reasoning about uncertainty and preferences
- M. Montali, F.M. Maggi (Free University of Bozen-Bolzano). Topics: Business Process Modelling, probabilistic temporal logics
- O. Kutz, N. Troquard (Free University of Bozen-Bolzano). Topics: Concept invention, justifications, generalizations

#### Language Competences

#### 12 Language Competences

Spanish Native speaker

English C1 level (IELTS Academic 7.5)

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Italian} & \textit{C1} \text{ level} \\ \textbf{German} & \textit{B2} \text{ level} \\ \end{array}$ 

#### **Publications**

- [1] Erman Acar and Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning with contextual knowledge and influence diagrams. In Diego Calvanese, Esra Erdem, and Michael Thielscher, editors, *Proceedings of the 17th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning, KR 2020, Rhodes, Greece, September 12-18, 2020*, pages 12–21, 2020.
- [2] Franz Baader, Francesco Kriegel, Adrian Nuradiansyah, and Rafael Peñaloza. Computing compliant anonymisations of quantified aboxes w.r.t. *EL* policies. In Jeff Z. Pan, Valentina A. M. Tamma, Claudia d'Amato, Krzysztof Janowicz, Bo Fu, Axel Polleres, Oshani Seneviratne, and Lalana Kagal, editors, *The Semantic Web ISWC 2020 19th International Semantic Web Conference, Athens, Greece, November 2-6, 2020, Proceedings, Part I, volume 12506 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science*, pages 3–20. Springer, 2020.
- [3] Camille Bourgaux, Ana Ozaki, Rafael Peñaloza, and Livia Predoiu. Provenance for the description logic elhr (extended abstract). In Stefan Borgwardt and Thomas Meyer, editors, Proceedings of the 33rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2020) co-located with the 17th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2020), Online Event [Rhodes, Greece], September 12th to 14th, 2020, volume 2663 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2020.
- [4] Camille Bourgaux, Ana Ozaki, Rafael Peñaloza, and Livia Predoiu. Provenance for the description logic elhr. In Christian Bessiere, editor, *Proceedings of the Twenty-Ninth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence*, *IJCAI 2020*, pages 1862–1869. ijcai.org, 2020.
- [5] Fabrizio Maria Maggi, Marco Montali, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anti Alman. Extending temporal business constraints with uncertainty. In Dirk Fahland, Chiara Ghidini, Jörg Becker, and Marlon Dumas, editors, Business Process Management 18th International Conference, BPM 2020, Seville, Spain, September 13-18, 2020, Proceedings, volume 12168 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 35–54. Springer, 2020.
- [6] Fabrizio Maria Maggi, Marco Montali, and Rafael Peñaloza. Probabilistic conformance checking based on declarative process models. In Nicolas Herbaut and Marcello La Rosa, editors, Advanced Information Systems Engineering CAiSE Forum 2020, Grenoble, France, June 8-12, 2020, Proceedings, volume 386 of Lecture Notes in Business Information Processing, pages 86–99. Springer, 2020.
- [7] Fabrizio Maria Maggi, Marco Montali, and Rafael Peñaloza. Temporal logics over finite traces with uncertainty. In *The Thirty-Fourth AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence, AAAI 2020, The Thirty-Second Innovative Applications of Artificial Intelligence Conference, IAAI 2020, The Tenth AAAI Symposium on Educational Advances in Artificial Intelligence, EAAI 2020, New York, NY, USA, February 7-12, 2020*, pages 10218–10225. AAAI Press, 2020.
- [8] Norbert Manthey, Rafael Peñaloza, and Sebastian Rudolph. Satpin: Axiom pinpointing for lightweight description logics through incremental SAT. Künstliche Intell., 34(3):389–394, 2020.
- [9] Gabriella Pasi and Rafael Peñaloza. Query answering in fuzzy dl-lite with graded axioms (extended abstract). In Stefan Borgwardt and Thomas Meyer, editors, Proceedings of the 33rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2020) co-located with the 17th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2020), Online Event [Rhodes, Greece], September 12th to 14th, 2020, volume 2663 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2020.
- [10] Gabriella Pasi and Rafael Peñaloza. Query answering in fuzzy dl-lite with graded axioms. In Víctor Gutiérrez-Basulto, Tomás Kliegr, Ahmet Soylu, Martin Giese, and Dumitru Roman,

- editors, Rules and Reasoning 4th International Joint Conference, RuleML+RR 2020, Oslo, Norway, June 29 July 1, 2020, Proceedings, volume 12173 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 39–53. Springer, 2020.
- [11] Rafael Peñaloza. Error-tolerance and error management in lightweight description logics. Künstliche Intell., 34(4):491–500, 2020.
- [12] Rafael Peñaloza. Introduction to probabilistic ontologies (tutorial). In Francesco Calimeri, Simona Perri, and Ester Zumpano, editors, Proceedings of the 35th Italian Conference on Computational Logic CILC 2020, Rende, Italy, October 13-15, 2020, volume 2710 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, page 4. CEUR-WS.org, 2020.
- [13] Rafael Peñaloza. Introduction to probabilistic ontologies. In Marco Manna and Andreas Pieris, editors, Reasoning Web. Declarative Artificial Intelligence 16th International Summer School 2020, Oslo, Norway, June 24-26, 2020, Tutorial Lectures, volume 12258 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 1–35. Springer, 2020.
- [14] Rafael Peñaloza. Towards a logic of meta-analysis. In Diego Calvanese, Esra Erdem, and Michael Thielscher, editors, Proceedings of the 17th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning, KR 2020, Rhodes, Greece, September 12-18, 2020, pages 672-676, 2020.
- [15] Erman Acar, Rafael Peñaloza, and Livia Predoiu. Making decisions over contextual ontologies. In Mantas Simkus and Grant E. Weddell, editors, Proceedings of the 32nd International Workshop on Description Logics, Oslo, Norway, June 18-21, 2019, volume 2373 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2019.
- [16] Alessander Botti Benevides, Jean-Rémi Bourguet, Giancarlo Guizzardi, Rafael Peñaloza, and João Paulo A. Almeida. Representing a reference foundational ontology of events in SROIQ. Appl. Ontology, 14(3):293–334, 2019.
- [17] Leonard Botha, Thomas Meyer, and Rafael Peñaloza. A bayesian extension of the description logic ALC. In Francesco Calimeri, Nicola Leone, and Marco Manna, editors, Logics in Artificial Intelligence - 16th European Conference, JELIA 2019, Rende, Italy, May 7-11, 2019, Proceedings, volume 11468 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 339-354. Springer, 2019.
- [18] Diego Calvanese, Davide Lanti, Ana Ozaki, Rafael Peñaloza, and Guohui Xiao. Enriching ontology-based data access with provenance. In Sarit Kraus, editor, *Proceedings of the Twenty-Eighth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IJCAI 2019, Macao, China, August 10-16, 2019*, pages 1616–1623. ijcai.org, 2019.
- [19] Maria M. Hedblom, Oliver Kutz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Giancarlo Guizzardi. Image schema combinations and complex events. *Künstliche Intell.*, 33(3):279–291, 2019.
- [20] Rafael Peñaloza. Explaining axiom pinpointing. In Carsten Lutz, Uli Sattler, Cesare Tinelli, Anni-Yasmin Turhan, and Frank Wolter, editors, Description Logic, Theory Combination, and All That Essays Dedicated to Franz Baader on the Occasion of His 60th Birthday, volume 11560 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 475–496. Springer, 2019.
- [21] Rafael Peñaloza. Making decisions with knowledge base repairs. In Vicenç Torra, Yasuo Narukawa, Gabriella Pasi, and Marco Viviani, editors, *Modeling Decisions for Artificial Intelligence 16th International Conference*, MDAI 2019, Milan, Italy, September 4-6, 2019, Proceedings, volume 11676 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 259–271. Springer, 2019.
- [22] Stefano Borgo, Oliver Kutz, Frank Loebe, Fabian Neuhaus, Kemo Adrian, Mihailo Antovic, Valerio Basile, Martin Boeker, Diego Calvanese, Tommaso Caselli, Giorgio Colombo, Roberto

- Confalonieri, Laura Daniele, Jérôme Euzenat, Antony Galton, Dagmar Gromann, Maria M. Hedblom, Heinrich Herre, Inge Hinterwaldner, Andrea Janes, Ludger Jansen, Kris Krois, Antonio Lieto, Claudio Masolo, Rafael Peñaloza, Daniele Porello, Daniele Paolo Radicioni, Emilio M. Sanfilippo, Daniel Schober, Rossella Stufano, and Amanda Vizedom, editors. *Proceedings of the Joint Ontology Workshops 2017 Episode 3: The Tyrolean Autumn of Ontology, Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, September 21-23, 2017*, volume 2050 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [23] Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan, editors. Proceedings of the Second Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty, and Vagueness co-located with the 9th International Joint Conference on Automated Reasoning, PRUV@IJCAR 2018, Oxford, UK, July 19th, 2018, volume 2157 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [24] Franz Baader, Francesco Kriegel, Adrian Nuradiansyah, and Rafael Peñaloza. Making repairs in description logics more gentle (extended abstract). In Magdalena Ortiz and Thomas Schneider, editors, Proceedings of the 31st International Workshop on Description Logics co-located with 16th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2018), Tempe, Arizona, US, October 27th to 29th, 2018, volume 2211 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [25] Franz Baader, Francesco Kriegel, Adrian Nuradiansyah, and Rafael Peñaloza. Making repairs in description logics more gentle. In Michael Thielscher, Francesca Toni, and Frank Wolter, editors, Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Sixteenth International Conference, KR 2018, Tempe, Arizona, 30 October - 2 November 2018, pages 319–328. AAAI Press, 2018.
- [26] Leonard Botha, Thomas Meyer, and Rafael Peñaloza. The bayesian description logic BALC. In Magdalena Ortiz and Thomas Schneider, editors, Proceedings of the 31st International Workshop on Description Logics co-located with 16th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2018), Tempe, Arizona, US, October 27th - to - 29th, 2018, volume 2211 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [27] Jerónimo Castrillón, Matthias Lieber, Sascha Klüppelholz, Marcus Völp, Nils Asmussen, Uwe Aßmann, Franz Baader, Christel Baier, Gerhard P. Fettweis, Jochen Fröhlich, Andrés Goens, Sebastian Haas, Dirk Habich, Hermann Härtig, Mattis Hasler, Immo Huismann, Tomas Karnagel, Sven Karol, Akash Kumar, Wolfgang Lehner, Linda Leuschner, Siqi Ling, Steffen Märcker, Christian Menard, Johannes Mey, Wolfgang E. Nagel, Benedikt Nöthen, Rafael Peñaloza, Michael Raitza, Jörg Stiller, Annett Ungethüm, Axel Voigt, and Sascha Wunderlich. A hardware/software stack for heterogeneous systems. *IEEE Trans. Multi Scale Comput. Syst.*, 4(3):243–259, 2018.
- [28] Roberto Confalonieri, Manfred Eppe, Marco Schorlemmer, Oliver Kutz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Enric Plaza. Upward refinement operators for conceptual blending in the description logic  $\mathcal{EL}^{++}$ . Ann. Math. Artif. Intell., 82(1-3):69–99, 2018.
- [29] Giancarlo Guizzardi, Rafael Peñaloza, Maria M. Hedblom, and Oliver Kutz. Under the supersuit: What superheroes can reveal about inherited properties in conceptual blending. In François Pachet, Anna Jordanous, and Carlos León, editors, Proceedings of the Ninth International Conference on Computational Creativity, ICCC 2018, Salamanca, Spain, June 25-29, 2018, pages 216–223. Association for Computational Creativity (ACC), 2018.
- [30] Maria M. Hedblom, Oliver Kutz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Giancarlo Guizzardi. What's cracking? how image schema combinations can model conceptualisations of events. In Oliver Kutz, Maria M. Hedblom, Tarek R. Besold, Roberto Confalonieri, Carlos León, Tony Veale, and

- John A. Bateman, editors, Joint Proceedings of the Workshops C3GI: The 7th International Workshop on Computational Creativity, Concept Invention, and General Intelligence ISD4: The 4th Image Schema Day, and SCORE: From Image Schemas to Cognitive Robotics, Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, December 13-15, 2018, volume 2347 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [31] Alisa Kovtunova and Rafael Peñaloza. Cutting diamonds: A temporal logic with probabilistic distributions. In Michael Thielscher, Francesca Toni, and Frank Wolter, editors, *Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Sixteenth International Conference, KR 2018, Tempe, Arizona, 30 October 2 November 2018*, pages 561–570. AAAI Press, 2018.
- [32] Alisa Kovtunova and Rafael Peñaloza. Cutting diamonds: Temporal dls with probabilistic distributions over data. In Magdalena Ortiz and Thomas Schneider, editors, Proceedings of the 31st International Workshop on Description Logics co-located with 16th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2018), Tempe, Arizona, US, October 27th to 29th, 2018, volume 2211 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [33] Ana Ozaki and Rafael Peñaloza. Consequence-based axiom pinpointing. In Davide Ciucci, Gabriella Pasi, and Barbara Vantaggi, editors, Scalable Uncertainty Management 12th International Conference, SUM 2018, Milan, Italy, October 3-5, 2018, Proceedings, volume 11142 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 181–195. Springer, 2018.
- [34] Ana Ozaki and Rafael Peñaloza. Provenance in ontology-based data access. In Magdalena Ortiz and Thomas Schneider, editors, Proceedings of the 31st International Workshop on Description Logics co-located with 16th International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR 2018), Tempe, Arizona, US, October 27th to 29th, 2018, volume 2211 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2018.
- [35] Rafael Peñaloza, Veronika Thost, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Query answering for rough EL ontologies. In Michael Thielscher, Francesca Toni, and Frank Wolter, editors, Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Sixteenth International Conference, KR 2018, Tempe, Arizona, 30 October 2 November 2018, pages 399–408. AAAI Press, 2018.
- [36] Daniele Porello, Nicolas Troquard, Rafael Peñaloza, Roberto Confalonieri, Pietro Galliani, and Oliver Kutz. Two approaches to ontology aggregation based on axiom weakening. In Jérôme Lang, editor, Proceedings of the Twenty-Seventh International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IJCAI 2018, July 13-19, 2018, Stockholm, Sweden, pages 1942–1948. ijcai.org, 2018.
- [37] Nicolas Troquard, Roberto Confalonieri, Pietro Galliani, Rafael Peñaloza, Daniele Porello, and Oliver Kutz. Repairing ontologies via axiom weakening. In Sheila A. McIlraith and Kilian Q. Weinberger, editors, Proceedings of the Thirty-Second AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence, (AAAI-18), the 30th innovative Applications of Artificial Intelligence (IAAI-18), and the 8th AAAI Symposium on Educational Advances in Artificial Intelligence (EAAI-18), New Orleans, Louisiana, USA, February 2-7, 2018, pages 1981–1988. AAAI Press, 2018.
- [38] Mario Alviano, Giovanni Amendola, and Rafael Peñaloza. Minimal undefinedness for fuzzy answer sets. In Satinder P. Singh and Shaul Markovitch, editors, *Proceedings of the Thirty-First AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence, February 4-9, 2017, San Francisco, California, USA*, pages 3694–3700. AAAI Press, 2017.
- [39] Alessandro Artale, Enrico Franconi, Rafael Peñaloza, and Francesco Sportelli. A decidable very expressive description logic for databases. In Claudia d'Amato, Miriam Fernández, Valentina

- A. M. Tamma, Freddy Lécué, Philippe Cudré-Mauroux, Juan F. Sequeda, Christoph Lange, and Jeff Heflin, editors, *The Semantic Web ISWC 2017 16th International Semantic Web Conference, Vienna, Austria, October 21-25, 2017, Proceedings, Part I*, volume 10587 of *Lecture Notes in Computer Science*, pages 37–52. Springer, 2017.
- [40] Alessandro Artale, Enrico Franconi, Rafael Peñaloza, and Francesco Sportelli. A decidable very expressive n-ary description logic for database applications (extended abstract). In Sergio Flesca, Sergio Greco, Elio Masciari, and Domenico Saccà, editors, *Proceedings of the 25th Italian Symposium on Advanced Database Systems*, Squillace Lido (Catanzaro), Italy, June 25-29, 2017, volume 2037 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, page 33. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [41] Franz Baader, Stefan Borgwardt, and Rafael Peñaloza. Decidability and complexity of fuzzy description logics. Künstliche Intell., 31(1):85–90, 2017.
- [42] Alessander Botti Benevides, Jean-Rémi Bourguet, Giancarlo Guizzardi, and Rafael Peñaloza. Representing the UFO-B foundational ontology of events in SROIQ. In Stefano Borgo, Oliver Kutz, Frank Loebe, Fabian Neuhaus, Kemo Adrian, Mihailo Antovic, Valerio Basile, Martin Boeker, Diego Calvanese, Tommaso Caselli, Giorgio Colombo, Roberto Confalonieri, Laura Daniele, Jérôme Euzenat, Antony Galton, Dagmar Gromann, Maria M. Hedblom, Heinrich Herre, Inge Hinterwaldner, Andrea Janes, Ludger Jansen, Kris Krois, Antonio Lieto, Claudio Masolo, Rafael Peñaloza, Daniele Porello, Daniele Paolo Radicioni, Emilio M. Sanfilippo, Daniel Schober, Rossella Stufano, and Amanda Vizedom, editors, Proceedings of the Joint Ontology Workshops 2017 Episode 3: The Tyrolean Autumn of Ontology, Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, September 21-23, 2017, volume 2050 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [43] Stefan Borgwardt, Marco Cerami, and Rafael Peñaloza. The complexity of fuzzy EL under the łukasiewicz t-norm. *Int. J. Approx. Reason.*, 91:179–201, 2017.
- [44] Stefan Borgwardt, Marco Cerami, and Rafael Peñaloza. Łukasiewicz fuzzy EL is undecidable. In Alessandro Artale, Birte Glimm, and Roman Kontchakov, editors, *Proceedings of the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics, Montpellier, France, July 18-21, 2017*, volume 1879 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [45] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Algorithms for reasoning in very expressive description logics under infinitely valued gödel semantics. *Int. J. Approx. Reason.*, 83:60–101, 2017.
- [46] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Fuzzy description logics A survey. In Serafín Moral, Olivier Pivert, Daniel Sánchez, and Nicolás Marín, editors, Scalable Uncertainty Management 11th International Conference, SUM 2017, Granada, Spain, October 4-6, 2017, Proceedings, volume 10564 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 31–45. Springer, 2017.
- [47] Ismail Ilkan Ceylan, Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Oana Tifrea-Marciuska. Query answering in ontologies under preference rankings. In Carles Sierra, editor, *Proceedings of the Twenty-Sixth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IJCAI 2017, Melbourne, Australia, August 19-25, 2017*, pages 943–949. ijcai.org, 2017.
- [48] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. The bayesian ontology language \$\$\mathcal {BEL}\$\$\$ BEL. J. Autom. Reason., 58(1):67–95, 2017.
- [49] Roberto Confalonieri, Oliver Kutz, Pietro Galliani, Rafael Peñaloza, Daniele Porello, Marco Schorlemmer, and Nicolas Troquard. Coherence, similarity, and concept generalisation. In Alessandro Artale, Birte Glimm, and Roman Kontchakov, editors, Proceedings of the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics, Montpellier, France, July 18-21, 2017, volume 1879 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.

- [50] Roberto Confalonieri, Nicolas Troquard, Pietro Galliani, Oliver Kutz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Daniele Porello. Two applications of concept refinement. In Tarek R. Besold and Oliver Kutz, editors, Proceedings of the First International Workshop on Comprehensibility and Explanation in AI and ML 2017 co-located with 16th International Conference of the Italian Association for Artificial Intelligence (AI\*IA 2017), Bari, Italy, November 16th and 17th, 2017, volume 2071 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [51] Lisa Hutschenreiter and Rafael Peñaloza. An automata view to goal-directed methods. In Frank Drewes, Carlos Martín-Vide, and Bianca Truthe, editors, Language and Automata Theory and Applications 11th International Conference, LATA 2017, Umeå, Sweden, March 6-9, 2017, Proceedings, volume 10168 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 103–114, 2017.
- [52] Alexey Ignatiev, João Marques-Silva, Carlos Mencía, and Rafael Peñaloza. Debugging EL+ ontologies through horn MUS enumeration. In Alessandro Artale, Birte Glimm, and Roman Kontchakov, editors, Proceedings of the 30th International Workshop on Description Logics, Montpellier, France, July 18-21, 2017, volume 1879 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [53] Evgeny Kharlamov, Ognjen Savkovic, Guohui Xiao, Rafael Peñaloza, Gulnar Mehdi, Mikhail Roshchin, and Ian Horrocks. Semantic rules for machine diagnostics: Execution and management. In Ee-Peng Lim, Marianne Winslett, Mark Sanderson, Ada Wai-Chee Fu, Jimeng Sun, J. Shane Culpepper, Eric Lo, Joyce C. Ho, Debora Donato, Rakesh Agrawal, Yu Zheng, Carlos Castillo, Aixin Sun, Vincent S. Tseng, and Chenliang Li, editors, Proceedings of the 2017 ACM on Conference on Information and Knowledge Management, CIKM 2017, Singapore, November 06 10, 2017, pages 2131–2134. ACM, 2017.
- [54] Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Preface to the speical issue on reasoning about preferences, uncertainty, and vagueness. FLAP, 4(7), 2017.
- [55] Rafael Peñaloza. Inconsistency-tolerant instance checking in tractable description logics. In Stefania Costantini, Enrico Franconi, William Van Woensel, Roman Kontchakov, Fariba Sadri, and Dumitru Roman, editors, Rules and Reasoning International Joint Conference, RuleML+RR 2017, London, UK, July 12-15, 2017, Proceedings, volume 10364 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 215–229. Springer, 2017.
- [56] Rafael Peñaloza, Carlos Mencía, Alexey Ignatiev, and João Marques-Silva. Lean kernels in description logics. In Eva Blomqvist, Diana Maynard, Aldo Gangemi, Rinke Hoekstra, Pascal Hitzler, and Olaf Hartig, editors, The Semantic Web 14th International Conference, ESWC 2017, Portorož, Slovenia, May 28 June 1, 2017, Proceedings, Part I, volume 10249 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 518–533, 2017.
- [57] Rafael Peñaloza and Nico Potyka. Towards statistical reasoning in description logics over finite domains. In Serafín Moral, Olivier Pivert, Daniel Sánchez, and Nicolás Marín, editors, Scalable Uncertainty Management - 11th International Conference, SUM 2017, Granada, Spain, October 4-6, 2017, Proceedings, volume 10564 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 280–294. Springer, 2017.
- [58] Rafael Peñaloza and Baris Sertkaya. Understanding the complexity of axiom pinpointing in lightweight description logics. *Artif. Intell.*, 250:80–104, 2017.
- [59] Rafael Peñaloza. The shape of the other. In Stefano Borgo, Oliver Kutz, Frank Loebe, Fabian Neuhaus, Kemo Adrian, Mihailo Antovic, Valerio Basile, Martin Boeker, Diego Calvanese, Tommaso Caselli, Giorgio Colombo, Roberto Confalonieri, Laura Daniele, Jérôme Euzenat, Antony Galton, Dagmar Gromann, Maria M. Hedblom, Heinrich Herre, Inge Hinterwaldner, Andrea Janes, Ludger Jansen, Kris Krois, Antonio Lieto, Claudio Masolo, Rafael Peñaloza, Daniele

- Porello, Daniele Paolo Radicioni, Emilio M. Sanfilippo, Daniel Schober, Rossella Stufano, and Amanda Vizedom, editors, *Proceedings of the Joint Ontology Workshops 2017 Episode 3: The Tyrolean Autumn of Ontology, Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, September 21-23, 2017*, volume 2050 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2017.
- [60] Daniele Porello, Nicolas Troquard, Roberto Confalonieri, Pietro Galliani, Oliver Kutz, and Rafael Peñaloza. Repairing socially aggregated ontologies using axiom weakening. In Bo An, Ana L. C. Bazzan, João Leite, Serena Villata, and Leendert W. N. van der Torre, editors, PRIMA 2017: Principles and Practice of Multi-Agent Systems 20th International Conference, Nice, France, October 30 November 3, 2017, Proceedings, volume 10621 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 441–449. Springer, 2017.
- [61] Maurizio Lenzerini and Rafael Peñaloza, editors. Proceedings of the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics, Cape Town, South Africa, April 22-25, 2016, volume 1577 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2016.
- [62] M. Fareed Arif, Carlos Mencía, Alexey Ignatiev, Norbert Manthey, Rafael Peñaloza, and João Marques-Silva. BEACON: an efficient sat-based tool for debugging EL+ ontologies. In Nadia Creignou and Daniel Le Berre, editors, Theory and Applications of Satisfiability Testing SAT 2016 19th International Conference, Bordeaux, France, July 5-8, 2016, Proceedings, volume 9710 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 521–530. Springer, 2016.
- [63] Stefan Borgwardt, Theofilos P. Mailis, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Answering fuzzy conjunctive queries over finitely valued fuzzy ontologies. *J. Data Semant.*, 5(2):55–75, 2016.
- [64] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning in expressive gödel description logics. In Maurizio Lenzerini and Rafael Peñaloza, editors, Proceedings of the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics, Cape Town, South Africa, April 22-25, 2016, volume 1577 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2016.
- [65] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning in fuzzy description logics using automata. Fuzzy Sets Syst., 298:22–43, 2016.
- [66] İsmail İlkan Ceylan, Thomas Lukasiewicz, and Rafael Peñaloza. Complexity results for probabilistic datalog<sup>±</sup>. In Gal A. Kaminka, Maria Fox, Paolo Bouquet, Eyke Hüllermeier, Virginia Dignum, Frank Dignum, and Frank van Harmelen, editors, ECAI 2016 22nd European Conference on Artificial Intelligence, 29 August-2 September 2016, The Hague, The Netherlands Including Prestigious Applications of Artificial Intelligence (PAIS 2016), volume 285 of Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence and Applications, pages 1414–1422. IOS Press, 2016.
- [67] Roberto Confalonieri, Marco Schorlemmer, Oliver Kutz, Rafael Peñaloza, Enric Plaza, and Manfred Eppe. Conceptual blending in EL++. In Maurizio Lenzerini and Rafael Peñaloza, editors, Proceedings of the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics, Cape Town, South Africa, April 22-25, 2016, volume 1577 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2016.
- [68] Norbert Manthey, Rafael Peñaloza, and Sebastian Rudolph. Efficient axiom pinpointing in EL using SAT technology. In Maurizio Lenzerini and Rafael Peñaloza, editors, *Proceedings of the 29th International Workshop on Description Logics, Cape Town, South Africa, April 22-25, 2016*, volume 1577 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2016.
- [69] João Marques-Silva, Alexey Ignatiev, Carlos Mencía, and Rafael Peñaloza. Efficient reasoning for inconsistent horn formulae. In Loizos Michael and Antonis C. Kakas, editors, Logics in Artificial Intelligence 15th European Conference, JELIA 2016, Larnaca, Cyprus, November

- 9-11, 2016, Proceedings, volume 10021 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 336–352, 2016.
- [70] Rafael Peñaloza and Nico Potyka. Probabilistic reasoning in the description logic  $\mathcal{ALCP}$  with the principle of maximum entropy. In Steven Schockaert and Pierre Senellart, editors, Scalable Uncertainty Management 10th International Conference, SUM 2016, Nice, France, September 21-23, 2016, Proceedings, volume 9858 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 246-259. Springer, 2016.
- [71] Steffen Hölldobler, Markus Krötzsch, Rafael Peñaloza, and Sebastian Rudolph, editors. KI 2015: Advances in Artificial Intelligence - 38th Annual German Conference on AI, Dresden, Germany, September 21-25, 2015, Proceedings, volume 9324 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science. Springer, 2015.
- [72] Mario Alviano and Rafael Peñaloza. Fuzzy answer set computation via satisfiability modulo theories. *Theory Pract. Log. Program.*, 15(4-5):588–603, 2015.
- [73] Franz Baader, Stefan Borgwardt, and Rafael Peñaloza. On the decidability status of fuzzy ALC with general concept inclusions. *J. Philos. Log.*, 44(2):117–146, 2015.
- [74] Stefan Borgwardt, Marco Cerami, and Rafael Peñaloza. The complexity of subsumption in fuzzy EL. In Qiang Yang and Michael J. Wooldridge, editors, Proceedings of the Twenty-Fourth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IJCAI 2015, Buenos Aires, Argentina, July 25-31, 2015, pages 2812–2818. AAAI Press, 2015.
- [75] Stefan Borgwardt, Felix Distel, and Rafael Peñaloza. The limits of decidability in fuzzy description logics with general concept inclusions. *Artif. Intell.*, 218:23–55, 2015.
- [76] Stefan Borgwardt, Theofilos P. Mailis, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Conjunctive query answering with finitely many truth degrees. In Diego Calvanese and Boris Konev, editors, Proceedings of the 28th International Workshop on Description Logics, Athens, Greece, June 7-10, 2015, volume 1350 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.
- [77] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning in expressive description logics under infinitely valued gödel semantics. In Carsten Lutz and Silvio Ranise, editors, Frontiers of Combining Systems 10th International Symposium, FroCoS 2015, Wroclaw, Poland, September 21-24, 2015. Proceedings, volume 9322 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 49-65. Springer, 2015.
- [78] Ismail Ilkan Ceylan, Thomas Lukasiewicz, and Rafael Peñaloza. Answering EL queries in the presence of preferences. In Diego Calvanese and Boris Konev, editors, *Proceedings of the 28th International Workshop on Description Logics, Athens, Greece, June 7-10, 2015*, volume 1350 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.
- [79] İsmail İlkan Ceylan, Julian Mendez, and Rafael Peñaloza. The bayesian ontology reasoner is born! In Michel Dumontier, Birte Glimm, Rafael S. Gonçalves, Matthew Horridge, Ernesto Jiménez-Ruiz, Nicolas Matentzoglu, Bijan Parsia, Giorgos B. Stamou, and Giorgos Stoilos, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 4th International Workshop on OWL Reasoner Evaluation (ORE-2015) co-located with the 28th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2015), Athens, Greece, June 6, 2015, volume 1387 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 8–14. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.
- [80] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. Dynamic bayesian description logics. In Diego Calvanese and Boris Konev, editors, Proceedings of the 28th International Workshop on Description Logics, Athens, Greece, June 7-10, 2015, volume 1350 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.

- [81] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. Probabilistic query answering in the bayesian description logic  $\mathcal{BEL}$ . In Christoph Beierle and Alex Dekhtyar, editors, Scalable Uncertainty Management 9th International Conference, SUM 2015, Québec City, QC, Canada, September 16-18, 2015. Proceedings, volume 9310 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 21–35. Springer, 2015.
- [82] Roberto Confalonieri, Marco Schorlemmer, Enric Plaza, Manfred Eppe, Oliver Kutz, and Rafael Peñaloza. Upward refinement for conceptual blending in description logic: An asp-based approach and case study in EL++. In Odile Papini, Salem Benferhat, Laurent Garcia, Marie-Laure Mugnier, Eduardo L. Fermé, Thomas Meyer, Renata Wassermann, Torsten Hahmann, Ken Baclawski, Adila Krisnadhi, Pavel Klinov, Stefano Borgo, Oliver Kutz, and Daniele Porello, editors, Proceedings of the Joint Ontology Workshops 2015 Episode 1: The Argentine Winter of Ontology co-located with the 24th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI 2015), Buenos Aires, Argentina, July 25-27, 2015, volume 1517 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.
- [83] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Similarity-based relaxed instance queries. J. Appl. Log., 13(4):480–508, 2015.
- [84] Rafael Peñaloza and Aparna Saisree Thuluva. Iterative ontology updates using context labels. In Odile Papini, Salem Benferhat, Laurent Garcia, Marie-Laure Mugnier, Eduardo L. Fermé, Thomas Meyer, Renata Wassermann, Torsten Hahmann, Ken Baclawski, Adila Krisnadhi, Pavel Klinov, Stefano Borgo, Oliver Kutz, and Daniele Porello, editors, Proceedings of the Joint Ontology Workshops 2015 Episode 1: The Argentine Winter of Ontology co-located with the 24th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI 2015), Buenos Aires, Argentina, July 25-27, 2015, volume 1517 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2015.
- [85] Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan, editors. Proceedings of the First Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty, and Vagueness, PRUV 2014, co-located with 7th International Joint Conference on Automated Reasoning (IJCAR 2014), Vienna, Austria, July 23-24, 2014, volume 1205 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [86] Stefan Borgwardt, Marco Cerami, and Rafael Peñaloza. Many-valued horn logic is hard. In Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan, editors, Proceedings of the First Workshop on Logics for Reasoning about Preferences, Uncertainty, and Vagueness, PRUV 2014, co-located with 7th International Joint Conference on Automated Reasoning (IJCAR 2014), Vienna, Austria, July 23-24, 2014, volume 1205 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 52–58. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [87] Stefan Borgwardt, Felix Distel, and Rafael Peñaloza. Decidable gödel description logics without the finitely-valued model property. In Chitta Baral, Giuseppe De Giacomo, and Thomas Eiter, editors, Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Fourteenth International Conference, KR 2014, Vienna, Austria, July 20-24, 2014. AAAI Press, 2014.
- [88] Stefan Borgwardt, Felix Distel, and Rafael Peñaloza. Gödel description logics with general models. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 391–403. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [89] Stefan Borgwardt, José A. Leyva Galano, and Rafael Peñaloza. The fuzzy description logic \$\mathsf{G}\\text{--}{\mathcal{F\!L}\_0} \$ with greatest fixed-point semantics. In Eduardo Fermé and João Leite, editors, Logics in Artificial Intelligence 14th European Conference,

- JELIA 2014, Funchal, Madeira, Portugal, September 24-26, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8761 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 62-76. Springer, 2014.
- [90] Stefan Borgwardt, José A. Leyva Galano, and Rafael Peñaloza. Gödel fl.0 with greatest fixed-point semantics. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 71-82. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [91] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Consistency reasoning in lattice-based fuzzy description logics. Int. J. Approx. Reason., 55(9):1917–1938, 2014.
- [92] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Finite lattices do not make reasoning in ALCOI harder. In Fernando Bobillo, Rommel N. Carvalho, Paulo Cesar G. da Costa, Claudia d'Amato, Nicola Fanizzi, Kathryn B. Laskey, Kenneth J. Laskey, Thomas Lukasiewicz, Matthias Nickles, and Michael Pool, editors, Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web III ISWC International Workshops, URSW 2011-2013, Revised Selected Papers, volume 8816 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 122–141. Springer, 2014.
- [93] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. The bayesian description logic BEL. In Stéphane Demri, Deepak Kapur, and Christoph Weidenbach, editors, Automated Reasoning - 7th International Joint Conference, IJCAR 2014, Held as Part of the Vienna Summer of Logic, VSL 2014, Vienna, Austria, July 19-22, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8562 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 480-494. Springer, 2014.
- [94] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. Bayesian description logics. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 447-458. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [95] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning in the description logic BEL using bayesian networks. In Statistical Relational Artificial Intelligence, Papers from the 2014 AAAI Workshop, Québec City, Québec, Canada, July 27, 2014, volume WS-14-13 of AAAI Workshops. AAAI, 2014.
- [96] İsmail İlkan Ceylan and Rafael Peñaloza. Tight complexity bounds for reasoning in the description logic \$\mathcal{BE{\kern-.1em}L}\$. In Eduardo Fermé and João Leite, editors, Logics in Artificial Intelligence 14th European Conference, JELIA 2014, Funchal, Madeira, Portugal, September 24-26, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8761 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 77–91. Springer, 2014.
- [97] Stathis Delivorias, Haralampos Hatzikirou, Rafael Peñaloza, and Dirk Walther. Detecting emergent phenomena in cellular automata using temporal description logics. In Jaroslaw Was, Georgios Ch. Sirakoulis, and Stefania Bandini, editors, Cellular Automata 11th International Conference on Cellular Automata for Research and Industry, ACRI 2014, Krakow, Poland, September 22-25, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8751 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 357–366. Springer, 2014.
- [98] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Answering instance queries relaxed by concept similarity. In Chitta Baral, Giuseppe De Giacomo, and Thomas Eiter, editors, *Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Fourteenth International Conference*, KR 2014, Vienna, Austria, July 20-24, 2014. AAAI Press, 2014.
- [99] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Completion-based generalization inferences for the description logic ELOR with subjective probabilities. Int. J. Approx. Reason., 55(9):1939–1970, 2014.

- [100] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Mary, what's like all cats? In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 526–529. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [101] Karsten Lehmann and Rafael Peñaloza. The complexity of computing the behaviour of lattice automata on infinite trees. *Theor. Comput. Sci.*, 534:53–68, 2014.
- [102] Michel Ludwig and Rafael Peñaloza. Brave and cautious reasoning in EL. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 274–286. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [103] Michel Ludwig and Rafael Peñaloza. Error-tolerant reasoning in the description logic \$\mathcal{E{\kern-.1em}L}\$. In Eduardo Fermé and João Leite, editors, Logics in Artificial Intelligence 14th European Conference, JELIA 2014, Funchal, Madeira, Portugal, September 24-26, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8761 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 107-121. Springer, 2014.
- [104] Yue Ma and Rafael Peñaloza. Towards parallel repair: An ontology decomposition-based approach. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 633-645. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [105] Theofilos P. Mailis, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Conjunctive query answering in finitely-valued fuzzy description logics. In Roman Kontchakov and Marie-Laure Mugnier, editors, Web Reasoning and Rule Systems 8th International Conference, RR 2014, Athens, Greece, September 15-17, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8741 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 124–139. Springer, 2014.
- [106] Dorian Merz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Reasoning in ALC with fuzzy concrete domains. In Carsten Lutz and Michael Thielscher, editors, KI 2014: Advances in Artificial Intelligence - 37th Annual German Conference on AI, Stuttgart, Germany, September 22-26, 2014. Proceedings, volume 8736 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 171–182. Springer, 2014.
- [107] Rafael Peñaloza, Veronika Thost, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Certain answers in a rough world. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 709-712. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [108] Chiara Del Vescovo and Rafael Peñaloza. Dealing with ontologies using cods. In Meghyn Bienvenu, Magdalena Ortiz, Riccardo Rosati, and Mantas Simkus, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 27th International Workshop on Description Logics, Vienna, Austria, July 17-20, 2014, volume 1193 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 157–168. CEUR-WS.org, 2014.
- [109] Mario Alviano and Rafael Peñaloza. Fuzzy answer sets approximations. *Theory Pract. Log. Program.*, 13(4-5):753–767, 2013.
- [110] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. About subsumption in fuzzy EL. In Thomas Eiter, Birte Glimm, Yevgeny Kazakov, and Markus Krötzsch, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 26th International Workshop on Description Logics, Ulm, Germany, July 23 26, 2013, volume 1014 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 526–538. CEUR-WS.org, 2013.

- [111] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. The complexity of lattice-based fuzzy description logics. J. Data Semant., 2(1):1–19, 2013.
- [112] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Positive subsumption in fuzzy EL with general t-norms. In Francesca Rossi, editor, *IJCAI 2013, Proceedings of the 23rd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Beijing, China, August 3-9, 2013*, pages 789–795. IJCAI/AAAI, 2013.
- [113] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Computing role-depth bounded generalizations in the description logic. In Ingo J. Timm and Matthias Thimm, editors, KI 2013: Advances in Artificial Intelligence 36th Annual German Conference on AI, Koblenz, Germany, September 16-20, 2013. Proceedings, volume 8077 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 49-60. Springer, 2013.
- [114] Andreas Ecke, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Role-depth bounded least common subsumer in prob-el with nominals. In Thomas Eiter, Birte Glimm, Yevgeny Kazakov, and Markus Krötzsch, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 26th International Workshop on Description Logics, Ulm, Germany, July 23 26, 2013, volume 1014 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 670–688. CEUR-WS.org, 2013.
- [115] Rafael Peñaloza and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Instance-based non-standard inferences in \$\mathcal{EL}\$\$ with subjective probabilities. In Fernando Bobillo, Paulo Cesar G. da Costa, Claudia d'Amato, Nicola Fanizzi, Kathryn B. Laskey, Kenneth J. Laskey, Thomas Lukasiewicz, Matthias Nickles, and Michael Pool, editors, Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web II, International Workshops URSW 2008-2010 Held at ISWC and UniDL 2010 Held at FLoC, Revised Selected Papers, volume 7123 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 80–98. Springer, 2013.
- [116] Rafael Peñaloza and Tingting Zou. Rough EL classification. In Thomas Eiter, Birte Glimm, Yevgeny Kazakov, and Markus Krötzsch, editors, Informal Proceedings of the 26th International Workshop on Description Logics, Ulm, Germany, July 23 26, 2013, volume 1014 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 415–427. CEUR-WS.org, 2013.
- [117] Rafael Peñaloza and Tingting Zou. Roughening the envelope. In Pascal Fontaine, Christophe Ringeissen, and Renate A. Schmidt, editors, Frontiers of Combining Systems 9th International Symposium, FroCoS 2013, Nancy, France, September 18-20, 2013. Proceedings, volume 8152 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 71-86. Springer, 2013.
- [118] Franz Baader, Martin Knechtel, and Rafael Peñaloza. Context-dependent views to axioms and consequences of semantic web ontologies. *J. Web Semant.*, 12:22–40, 2012.
- [119] Stefan Borgwardt, Felix Distel, and Rafael Peñaloza. Gödel negation makes unwitnessed consistency crisp. In Yevgeny Kazakov, Domenico Lembo, and Frank Wolter, editors, *Proceedings of the 2012 International Workshop on Description Logics*, *DL-2012*, *Rome*, *Italy*, *June 7-10*, 2012, volume 846 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2012.
- [120] Stefan Borgwardt, Felix Distel, and Rafael Peñaloza. How fuzzy is my fuzzy description logic? In Bernhard Gramlich, Dale Miller, and Uli Sattler, editors, Automated Reasoning 6th International Joint Conference, IJCAR 2012, Manchester, UK, June 26-29, 2012. Proceedings, volume 7364 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 82–96. Springer, 2012.
- [121] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Non-gödel negation makes unwitnessed consistency undecidable. In Yevgeny Kazakov, Domenico Lembo, and Frank Wolter, editors, *Proceedings of the 2012 International Workshop on Description Logics*, *DL-2012*, *Rome*, *Italy*, *June 7-10*, 2012, volume 846 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2012.

- [122] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. A tableau algorithm for fuzzy description logics over residuated de morgan lattices. In Markus Krötzsch and Umberto Straccia, editors, Web Reasoning and Rule Systems 6th International Conference, RR 2012, Vienna, Austria, September 10-12, 2012. Proceedings, volume 7497 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 9-24. Springer, 2012.
- [123] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Undecidability of fuzzy description logics. In Gerhard Brewka, Thomas Eiter, and Sheila A. McIlraith, editors, *Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Thirteenth International Conference, KR 2012, Rome, Italy, June 10-14, 2012.* AAAI Press, 2012.
- [124] Weili Fu and Rafael Peñaloza. Adding context to tableaux for dls. In Yevgeny Kazakov, Domenico Lembo, and Frank Wolter, editors, *Proceedings of the 2012 International Workshop on Description Logics*, *DL-2012*, *Rome*, *Italy*, *June 7-10*, *2012*, volume 846 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2012.
- [125] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Are fuzzy description logics with general concept inclusion axioms decidable? In FUZZ-IEEE 2011, IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems, Taipei, Taiwan, 27-30 June, 2011, Proceedings, pages 1735–1742. IEEE, 2011.
- [126] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Gcis make reasoning in fuzzy DL with the product tnorm undecidable. In Riccardo Rosati, Sebastian Rudolph, and Michael Zakharyaschev, editors,
  Proceedings of the 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011), Barcelona,
  Spain, July 13-16, 2011, volume 745 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2011.
- [127] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. On the undecidability of fuzzy description logics with gcis and product t-norm. In Cesare Tinelli and Viorica Sofronie-Stokkermans, editors, Frontiers of Combining Systems, 8th International Symposium, FroCoS 2011, Saarbrücken, Germany, October 5-7, 2011. Proceedings, volume 6989 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 55–70. Springer, 2011.
- [128] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Description logics over lattices with multi-valued ontologies. In Toby Walsh, editor, IJCAI 2011, Proceedings of the 22nd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Barcelona, Catalonia, Spain, July 16-22, 2011, pages 768-773. IJCAI/AAAI, 2011.
- [129] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Finite lattices do not make reasoning in ALCI harder. In Fernando Bobillo, Rommel N. Carvalho, Paulo Cesar G. da Costa, Claudia d'Amato, Nicola Fanizzi, Kathryn B. Laskey, Thomas Lukasiewicz, Trevor Martin, and Matthias Nickles, editors, Proceedings of the 7th International Workshop on Uncertainty Reasoning for the Semantic Web (URSW 2011), Bonn, Germany, October 23, 2011, volume 778 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings, pages 51–62. CEUR-WS.org, 2011.
- [130] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. Fuzzy ontologies over lattices with t-norms. In Riccardo Rosati, Sebastian Rudolph, and Michael Zakharyaschev, editors, *Proceedings of the 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011), Barcelona, Spain, July 13-16, 2011*, volume 745 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2011.
- [131] Stefan Borgwardt and Rafael Peñaloza. The inclusion problem for weighted automata on infinite trees. In Pál Dömösi and Szabolcs Iván, editors, Automata and Formal Languages, 13th International Conference, AFL 2011, Debrecen, Hungary, August 17-22, 2011, Proceedings, pages 108–122, 2011.
- [132] Eldora, Martin Knechtel, and Rafael Peñaloza. Correcting access restrictions to a consequence more flexibly. In Riccardo Rosati, Sebastian Rudolph, and Michael Zakharyaschev, editors,

- Proceedings of the 24th International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2011), Barcelona, Spain, July 13-16, 2011, volume 745 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2011.
- [133] Rafael Peñaloza and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. A practical approach for computing generalization inferences in EL\mathcal{EL}. In Grigoris Antoniou, Marko Grobelnik, Elena Paslaru Bontas Simperl, Bijan Parsia, Dimitris Plexousakis, Pieter De Leenheer, and Jeff Z. Pan, editors, The Semantic Web: Research and Applications 8th Extended Semantic Web Conference, ESWC 2011, Heraklion, Crete, Greece, May 29-June 2, 2011, Proceedings, Part I, volume 6643 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 410–423. Springer, 2011.
- [134] Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan, editors. Proceedings of the First International Workshop on Uncertainty in Description Logics, Edinburgh, UK, July 20, 2010, volume 613 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2010.
- [135] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Automata-based axiom pinpointing. *J. Autom. Reason.*, 45(2):91–129, 2010.
- [136] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Axiom pinpointing in general tableaux. J. Log. Comput., 20(1):5–34, 2010.
- [137] Martin Knechtel and Rafael Peñaloza. Correcting access restrictions to a consequence. In Volker Haarslev, David Toman, and Grant E. Weddell, editors, *Proceedings of the 23rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2010), Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, May 4-7, 2010*, volume 573 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2010.
- [138] Martin Knechtel and Rafael Peñaloza. A generic approach for correcting access restrictions to a consequence. In Lora Aroyo, Grigoris Antoniou, Eero Hyvönen, Annette ten Teije, Heiner Stuckenschmidt, Liliana Cabral, and Tania Tudorache, editors, The Semantic Web: Research and Applications, 7th Extended Semantic Web Conference, ESWC 2010, Heraklion, Crete, Greece, May 30 June 3, 2010, Proceedings, Part I, volume 6088 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 167–182. Springer, 2010.
- [139] Rafael Peñaloza and Baris Sertkaya. Complexity of axiom pinpointing in the dl-lite family of description logics. In Helder Coelho, Rudi Studer, and Michael J. Wooldridge, editors, ECAI 2010 19th European Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Lisbon, Portugal, August 16-20, 2010, Proceedings, volume 215 of Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence and Applications, pages 29-34. IOS Press, 2010.
- [140] Rafael Peñaloza and Baris Sertkaya. Complexity of axiom pinpointing in the dl-lite family. In Volker Haarslev, David Toman, and Grant E. Weddell, editors, *Proceedings of the 23rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2010), Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, May 4-7, 2010*, volume 573 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2010.
- [141] Rafael Peñaloza and Baris Sertkaya. On the complexity of axiom pinpointing in the EL family of description logics. In Fangzhen Lin, Ulrike Sattler, and Miroslaw Truszczynski, editors, Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning: Proceedings of the Twelfth International Conference, KR 2010, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, May 9-13, 2010. AAAI Press, 2010.
- [142] Rafael Peñaloza and Anni-Yasmin Turhan. Towards approximative most specific concepts by completion for EL with subjective probabilities. In Thomas Lukasiewicz, Rafael Peñaloza, and Anni-Yasmin Turhan, editors, *Proceedings of the First International Workshop on Uncertainty in Description Logics, Edinburgh, UK, July 20, 2010*, volume 613 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2010.

- [143] Rafael Peñaloza. Using sums-of-products for non-standard reasoning. In Adrian-Horia Dediu, Henning Fernau, and Carlos Martín-Vide, editors, Language and Automata Theory and Applications, 4th International Conference, LATA 2010, Trier, Germany, May 24-28, 2010. Proceedings, volume 6031 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 488–499. Springer, 2010.
- [144] Anni-Yasmin Turhan and Rafael Peñaloza. Role-depth bounded least common subsumers by completion for EL- and prob-el-tboxes. In Volker Haarslev, David Toman, and Grant E. Weddell, editors, *Proceedings of the 23rd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2010)*, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, May 4-7, 2010, volume 573 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2010.
- [145] Franz Baader, Martin Knechtel, and Rafael Peñaloza. A generic approach for large-scale ontological reasoning in the presence of access restrictions to the ontology's axioms. In Abraham Bernstein, David R. Karger, Tom Heath, Lee Feigenbaum, Diana Maynard, Enrico Motta, and Krishnaprasad Thirunarayan, editors, The Semantic Web ISWC 2009, 8th International Semantic Web Conference, ISWC 2009, Chantilly, VA, USA, October 25-29, 2009. Proceedings, volume 5823 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 49–64. Springer, 2009.
- [146] Rafael Peñaloza Nyssen. Axiom pinpointing in description logics and beyond. PhD thesis, Dresden University of Technology, 2009.
- [147] Rafael Peñaloza. Reasoning with weighted ontologies. In Bernardo Cuenca Grau, Ian Horrocks, Boris Motik, and Ulrike Sattler, editors, *Proceedings of the 22nd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2009), Oxford, UK, July 27-30, 2009*, volume 477 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2009.
- [148] Rafael Peñaloza and Baris Sertkaya. Axiom pinpointing is hard. In Bernardo Cuenca Grau, Ian Horrocks, Boris Motik, and Ulrike Sattler, editors, Proceedings of the 22nd International Workshop on Description Logics (DL 2009), Oxford, UK, July 27-30, 2009, volume 477 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2009.
- [149] Rafael Peñaloza. Wie findet man die verantwortlichen axiome? axiom-pinpointing in beschreibungslogiken. In Steffen Hölldobler, editor, Ausgezeichnete Informatikdissertationen 2009, volume D-10 of LNI, pages 181–190. GI, 2009.
- [150] Franz Baader, Jan Hladik, and Rafael Peñaloza. Automata can show pspace results for description logics. *Inf. Comput.*, 206(9-10):1045–1056, 2008.
- [151] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Automata-based axiom pinpointing. In Alessandro Armando, Peter Baumgartner, and Gilles Dowek, editors, *Automated Reasoning*, 4th International Joint Conference, IJCAR 2008, Sydney, Australia, August 12-15, 2008, Proceedings, volume 5195 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 226–241. Springer, 2008.
- [152] Rafael Peñaloza. Automata-based pinpointing for dls. In Franz Baader, Carsten Lutz, and Boris Motik, editors, *Proceedings of the 21st International Workshop on Description Logics* (DL2008), Dresden, Germany, May 13-16, 2008, volume 353 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2008.
- [153] Franz Baader, Jan Hladik, and Rafael Peñaloza. Blocking automata for PSPACE dls. In Diego Calvanese, Enrico Franconi, Volker Haarslev, Domenico Lembo, Boris Motik, Anni-Yasmin Turhan, and Sergio Tessaris, editors, Proceedings of the 2007 International Workshop on Description Logics (DL2007), Brixen-Bressanone, near Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, 8-10 June, 2007, volume 250 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2007.

- [154] Franz Baader, Jan Hladik, and Rafael Peñaloza. Si! automata can show PSPACE results for description logics. In Remco Loos, Szilárd Zsolt Fazekas, and Carlos Martín-Vide, editors, LATA 2007. Proceedings of the 1st International Conference on Language and Automata Theory and Applications, volume Report 35/07, pages 67–78. Research Group on Mathematical Linguistics, Universitat Rovira i Virgili, Tarragona, 2007.
- [155] Franz Baader and Rafael Peñaloza. Axiom pinpointing in general tableaux. In Nicola Olivetti, editor, Automated Reasoning with Analytic Tableaux and Related Methods, 16th International Conference, TABLEAUX 2007, Aix en Provence, France, July 3-6, 2007, Proceedings, volume 4548 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 11–27. Springer, 2007.
- [156] Franz Baader, Rafael Peñaloza, and Boontawee Suntisrivaraporn. Pinpointing in the description logic EL. In Diego Calvanese, Enrico Franconi, Volker Haarslev, Domenico Lembo, Boris Motik, Anni-Yasmin Turhan, and Sergio Tessaris, editors, *Proceedings of the 2007 International Workshop on Description Logics (DL2007), Brixen-Bressanone, near Bozen-Bolzano, Italy, 8-10 June, 2007*, volume 250 of *CEUR Workshop Proceedings*. CEUR-WS.org, 2007.
- [157] Franz Baader, Rafael Peñaloza, and Boontawee Suntisrivaraporn. Pinpointing in the description logic  $EL^+$ . In Joachim Hertzberg, Michael Beetz, and Roman Englert, editors, KI 2007: Advances in Artificial Intelligence, 30th Annual German Conference on AI, KI 2007, Osnabrück, Germany, September 10-13, 2007, Proceedings, volume 4667 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 52–67. Springer, 2007.
- [158] Jan Hladik and Rafael Peñaloza. PSPACE automata for description logics. In Bijan Parsia, Ulrike Sattler, and David Toman, editors, Proceedings of the 2006 International Workshop on Description Logics (DL2006), Windermere, Lake District, UK, May 30 - June 1, 2006, volume 189 of CEUR Workshop Proceedings. CEUR-WS.org, 2006.
- [159] Alexander Kozlenkov, Rafael Peñaloza, Vivek Nigam, Loïc Royer, Gihan Dawelbait, and Michael Schroeder. Prova: Rule-based java scripting for distributed web applications: A case study in bioinformatics. In Torsten Grust, Hagen Höpfner, Arantza Illarramendi, Stefan Jablonski, Marco Mesiti, Sascha Müller, Paula-Lavinia Patranjan, Kai-Uwe Sattler, Myra Spiliopoulou, and Jef Wijsen, editors, Current Trends in Database Technology EDBT 2006, EDBT 2006 Workshops PhD, DataX, IIDB, IIHA, ICSNW, QLQP, PIM, PaRMA, and Reactivity on the Web, Munich, Germany, March 26-31, 2006, Revised Selected Papers, volume 4254 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 899–908. Springer, 2006.
- [160] Osvaldo Cairó and Rafael Peñaloza. Using bayesian networks as an inference engine in KAMET. In 23rd International Conference of the Chilean Computer Science Society (SCCC 2003), 6-7 November 2003, Chillan, Chile, pages 79–85. IEEE Computer Society, 2003.

Milano, October 4, 2021

Rafael Peñaloza Nyssen